
 

 
 
 
 
Summons to Meeting 
 
Thursday 26 January 2023 
 

Licensing Committee 
 

Monday 6 February 2023, 2.30 pm 
 

 
 

Membership: 
  
Councillor Ron Munby MBE (Chair) Councillor Peter Kendall (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Herbert Briggs Councillor John Crouch 
Councillor Peter Gaston Councillor Patrick Gorrill 
Councillor Malcolm Grainger Councillor Jimmy Grisdale 
Councillor Hilary Harrington Councillor Adrian Kirkbride 
Councillor William Pegram Councillor Paul Scott 
Councillor Colin Sharpe Councillor Alan Smith 
 

 
 If you have any questions or queries contact Democratic Services on 01900 516809. 

 
 

Agenda 
 
1. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 32) 
 

 To sign as a correct record the minutes of the following meetings; 
 
Licensing Committee on 10 June 2022; 
 
Licensing Panel on 30 November 2022; 
 
Licensing Regulatory Panel on 27 June 2022, 1 September 2022, 25 October 
2022, 15 November 2022 and 6 January 2023. 
 

  

2. Apologies for Absence   
 

 



3. Declaration of Interests   
 

 Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct. 

  

4. Questions   
 

 To answer questions from members of the public – submitted in writing or by 
electronic mail no later than 5.00pm on a working day, allowing two clear 
working days before the day of the meeting. 

  

5. Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Vehicle Age Policy  (Pages 33 - 44) 
 

6. Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Livery Conditions  (Pages 45 - 48) 
 

7. Hackney Carriage Table of Fares Review  (Pages 49 - 66) 
 

Licensing Committee Procedures  (Pages 67 - 70) 
 

 
Chief Executive 
 

 

 
 
 



At a meeting of the Licensing Committee held in Top Floor South, Allerdale House, 
Workington on Friday 10 June 2022 at 2.30 pm 
 
Members 
 
Councillor Peter Kendall (Chair)  
Councillor John Crouch Councillor Peter Gaston 
Councillor Jimmy Grisdale Councillor Hilary Harrington 
Councillor Colin Sharpe Councillor Alan Smith 
 
Apologies for absence were received from  Councillor Herbert Briggs, Councillor Allan 
Daniels, Councillor Patrick Gorrill, Councillor Malcolm Grainger, Councillor Adrian 
Kirkbride, Councillor William Pegram, Councillor Paul Scott and Councillor Alan Tyson 
 
Staff Present 
 
G Collinson, D Fletcher, L Jardine and J Morgan 
 
38. Minutes  

 
The minutes of the following meetings were signed as a correct record; 
 
Licensing Committee on 31 January 2022; 
Licensing Panel on 22 March 2022; 
Licensing Regulatory Panel on 14 January, 11 February and 28 February 2022. 
 

39. Declaration of Interests  
 
None declared. 
 

40. Questions  
 
None received. 
 

41. Hackney Carriage Vehicles - Review of Table of Fares  
 
The Senior Specialist – Licensing and Compliance submitted a report asking 
members to consider a review of the Table of Fares charged by a hackney 
carriage. 
 
The table of fares review was usually carried out annually however it was noted 
that no review had taken place in 2019, 2020 or 2021 and the fares had 
remained as was in 2018. 
 
For this year a consultation exercise had been carried out with the hackney 
carriage trade between 19 April and 13 May 2022. From the consultation 13 
responses had been received which members considered during the decision-
making process. 
 
In light of the current economic picture in the UK with rising fuel prices, inflation 
and cost of living members had a full and frank debate on the impact on the 
hackney carriage trade.  

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 
Questions and discussion also ensued between members and representatives 
of the taxi trade who attended the meeting. 
 
Members debated potential increases in the fares but also the rewording of 
several of the different tariffs. 
 
Councillor A Smith moved that the fares be increased by 10%, rounded if 
appropriate, and to amend the wording of tariffs 2 and 3 as follows: 
Tariff 2 – to bring forward the hire time to 11pm from midnight, and  
Tariff 3 – to extend the hire time from 4am to 6am.  
 
Councillor A Smith also proposed that the committee review the fares in 6 
months’ time. 
 
The motion was seconded by Councillor J Crouch. 
 
A vote was taken, 7 voted in favour, 0 against and 0 abstentions. The motion 
was carried. 
 
Recommended 
 
That Executive be requested to agree that – 
 

1. The fares be increased by 10%, rounded if appropriate, and to amend 
the wording of tariffs 2 and 3 as follows: 
Tariff 2 – to bring forward the hire time to 11pm from midnight, and Tariff 
3 – to extend the hire time from 4am to 6am; 

2. The table of fares be reviewed again in 6 months’ time. 
 

The meeting closed at 3.15 pm 
 

Page 4



At a meeting of the Licensing Panel held in Council Chamber, Allerdale House on 
Wednesday 30 November 2022 at 1.30 pm 
 
Members 
 
  
Councillor Malcolm Grainger Councillor Hilary Harrington 
Councillor Peter Kendall  
 
Staff Present 
 
D Fletcher, K Magnay and J Morgan 
 
 
264. Election of Chair  

 
Councillor M Grainger was elected chair for the meeting. 
 

265. Declaration of Interests  
 
None declared. 
 

266. Questions  
 
None received. 
 

267. To consider representations received in relation to an application for a 
premises licence  
 
The Specialist Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report to consider 
representations received in relation to an application for a premises licence. 
 
The report concerned an application for a premises licence for a premises 
known as Hazeldene. The postal address of the premises is The Heads, 
Keswick. 
 
The applicant is Fellpack Limited. A description of the premises was described 
in the report as, 
 
‘This small hotel is located on the south end of The Heads, between Highfield 
Hotel and Café Hope, it has long operated as a family-run good-value hotel. Our 
plan is to evolve the space and experience so that it feels more boutique and 
differentiated from the rest of the Keswick accommodation market. We wish to 
do this in part by offering guests a selection of interesting drink options from a 
small hotel bar, for enjoyment in the shared ground floor spaces and garden 
areas - such as a pro-theatre drink or post-Keswick meal nightcap (hence the 
need for an all-day licence). This is in no way intended to compete with the 
current offerings in Keswick, but simply enhance our guests" stay at the hotel. 
We may include simple add-on experiences such as champagne on arrival.’ 
 

Page 5



The application is to allow supply of alcohol on and off the premises between 
11am and midnight each day. The premises would be closed to the public at 
00:15.  

The applicant listed ways to promote the licensing objectives and if the licence 
is granted, these would become conditions.  
 
Five representations were received against the application. The Specialist 
Licensing and Compliance Officer advised members she had requested further 
information from representation five to date nothing had been received. 
 
The representations were included in the members report, officers provided a 
summary and advised members that some of the representations refer to a 
previous application and were not accepted as valid. 
 
Members were then advised of the options available and that they were to 
decide in line with the licensing objectives. 
 
The applicant made representations, explaining the background to the 
application then responded to concerns raised in the representations. 
 
They advised that the Licence was to cover drinks before dinner, offer pre 
arrival experiences and to cater mainly for guests of the boutique hotel.  
 
In response to the representations received, the applicant advised that they 
were repetitive and in relation to noise. They advised it would not be a late-night 
establishment, in relation to music this would be background music only as they 
don’t want the music to impact on other guests. The applicant also advised 
members that the representations received with regards to noise was due to 
another establishment in the area and this was misrepresenting what they are 
trying to achieve. The applicant also addressed the concerns raised for the 
outside terrace, he stated if designed properly there would only be 8-10 tables 
with table service only for people to enjoy the sunset, this would not be all year 
round only on good weather days and during hours of light. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer then went through the representations in 
detail with the applicant. 
 
In summary the applicant advised that guests are paying for tranquillity, peace 
and quiet, and it is within the best interests of the business to keep it that way. 
 
Members then asked questions in relation to the business model and the 
resident concerns. 
 
The meeting was then adjourned for member deliberations. 
 
The panel considered all information provided including the written 
representations from objectors and representations from the applicants. The 
panel also considered the relevant legislation. 
 
Councillor Kendall moved to grant the premises licence. 
 

Page 6



The motion was seconded by Councillor Grainger 
 
A vote was taken on the motion 2 voted in favour, 1 against and 0 abstentions. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
Decision 
 
The Licensing Panel has reached its decision. 
 
In making its decision, the Panel had regard to the four licensing objectives 
under the Licensing Act 2003, in particular the prevention of crime and disorder, 
the prevention of public nuisance and the protection of children from harm.  The 
Panel has also taken into account the representations received from the 
applicant, the representations from residents and the information set out in the 
report by the Licensing and Compliance Officer. 
 
The Panel has considered the Secretary of State’s guidance under section 182 
of the Licensing Act 2003, the Council’s Licensing Policy and Human Rights.  
 
The Panel sought to balance the interests of the applicant and the interested 
parties. 
 
The Panel considered the options available to it, which were: 
 

a) To grant the licence subject to the conditions mentioned in the operating 
schedule modified to such extent as the authority conditions necessary 
for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and any mandatory 
condition. 

b) To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities 
to which the application relates; 

c) To refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor 
d) To reject the application 

 
The Panel felt that it was reasonable and proportionate to take the following 
steps to promote the licensing objectives: 
 

 To agree to grant the licence subject to the conditions outlined in the 
application, which are appended to this decision. 

 
In making its decision, the Panel considered the fact that the Responsible 
Authorities did not object to the application.  It considers that the conditions as 
outlined are sufficient to promote the licensing objectives. 
 
If any party is aggrieved by this decision, they have the right to appeal to the 
Magistrates Court within 21 days of receiving written notification of the decision. 
 

268. To consider representations received in relation to an application for a 
premises licence  
 
The Specialist Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report to consider 
representations received in relation to an application for a premises licence. 

Page 7



 
The report concerned an application for a premises licence for a premises 
known as Hazeldene. The postal address of the premises is The Heads, 
Keswick. 
 
The applicant is Deborah Burrows, A description of the premises was described 
in the report as, 
 
‘Coffee shop situated beside a car park, semi-detached on the end of a small 
row of businesses. 
 
The application is to allow live music, anything of a similar description and the 
sale of alcohol in the following terms:  

Live Music (indoors) 

Monday to Thursday  09:00 – 23:30 

Friday and Saturday  09:00 – 00:00 

Sunday    09:00 – 23:00 

 

Anything of a similar description (indoors)  

Monday to Thursday 19:00 – 23:30 

Friday and Saturday 19:00 – 00:00 

Sunday 19:00 – 23:00 

 

Sale of Alcohol (on and off the premises) 

Monday to Thursday 09:00 – 00:00 

Friday and Saturday 09:00 – 01:00 

Sunday 09:00 – 23:00 

 

Premises open to the public 

Monday to Thursday 09:00 – 00:00 

Friday and Saturday 09:00 – 01:00 

Sunday 09:00 – 23:00 

 
The applicant listed ways to promote the licensing objectives and if the licence 
is granted, these would become conditions.  
 

Page 8



The Specialist Licensing and Compliance Officer advised members 
Environmental Health had suggested measures which they felt would promote 
the licensing objectives which included Public Safety and Prevention of Public 
Nuisance. The Specialist Licensing and Compliance Officer asked the applicant 
if these measures were accepted. The applicant confirmed she accepted them 
and was happy to work with them. 
 
Three representations were received against the application and these were 
included in the officer’s report.  
 
Members were then advised of the options available and that they were to 
decide in line with the licensing objectives. 
 
The applicant made representations, explaining the background to the 
application then responded to concerns raised in the representations. 
 
She advised the purpose for the licence was to serve nice meals and be able to 
offer the customer drinks with their meals. 
 
In response to the representations received, the applicant advised that they 
were repetitive and in relation to noise. Having ran a pub for over 20 years she 
is aware of the rules and regulations and wants to work with the residents not 
against them and takes her business very seriously. Noise levels in the pub will 
be kept to a minimum and windows will be kept closed. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer then went through the representations in 
detail with the applicant. 
 
The Objectors spoke and raised their concerns which mainly focused on noise 
and antisocial behaviour. 
 
The applicant advised the objectors that she wants to work with them and nip 
any trouble or excess noise in the bud. 
 
Members then asked questions in relation to the business model and the 
resident concerns. 
 
The meeting was then adjourned for member deliberations. 
 
The panel considered all information provided including the written 
representations from objectors and representations from the applicants. The 
panel also considered the relevant legislation. 
 
Councillor Kendall moved to grant the premises licence. 
 
The motion was seconded by Councillor Harrington 
 
A vote was taken on the motion: The vote in favour was unanimous. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
Decision 

Page 9



 
The Licensing Panel has reached its decision. 
 
In making its decision, the Panel had regard to the four licensing objectives 
under the Licensing Act 2003, in particular the prevention of crime and disorder, 
the prevention of public nuisance and the protection of children from harm.  The 
Panel has also taken into account the representations received from the 
applicant, the representations from residents, the additional conditions 
proposed by Environmental Health and the information set out in the report by 
the Licensing and Compliance Officer. 
 
The Panel has considered the Secretary of State’s guidance under section 182 
of the Licensing Act 2003, the Council’s Licensing Policy and Human Rights.  
 
The Panel sought to balance the interests of the applicant and the interested 
parties. 
 
The Panel considered the options available to it, which were: 
 

a) To grant the licence subject to the conditions mentioned in the operating 
schedule modified to such extent as the authority conditions necessary 
for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and any mandatory 
condition. 

b) To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities 
to which the application relates; 

c) To refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor 
d) To reject the application 

 
The Panel felt that it was reasonable and proportionate to take the following 
steps to promote the licensing objectives: 
 

 To agree to grant the licence subject to the conditions outlined in the 
application, which are appended to this decision and the additional 
conditions suggested by Environmental Health which were accepted by 
the applicant. 

 
In making its decision, the Panel considered the fact that the Responsible 
Authorities did not object to the application and that the conditions suggested by 
Environmental Health were accepted by the applicant.  It considers that the 
conditions as outlined are sufficient to promote the licensing objectives. 
 
If any party is aggrieved by this decision, they have the right to appeal to the 
Magistrates Court within 21 days of receiving written notification of the decision. 
 
 

The meeting closed at 3.22 pm 
 

Page 10



At a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Panel held in Council Chamber, Allerdale 
House on Monday 27 June 2022 at 2.00 pm 
 
Members 
 
Councillor Peter Kendall (Chair)  
Councillor Peter Gaston Councillor Malcolm Grainger 
Councillor Hilary Harrington Councillor Alan Smith 
 
 
Staff Present 
 
C Fleming, D Fletcher and G Roach 
 
 
66. Election of Chair  

 
Councillor Peter Kendall was elected as Chair for the ensuing meeting. 
 

67. Declaration of Interests  
 
None declared. 
 

68. Questions  
 
None received. 
 

 Resolved  
 
“That under Section 100A4 of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds 
that it may involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 1 of part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.” 

  
69. To consider an application to grant a hackney carriage vehicle licence  

 
The Licensing and Compliance Specialist submitted a report for the Licensing 
Regulatory Panel to consider a vehicle for hackney carriage vehicle licence 
which did not meet the criteria of Allerdale Borough Councils Vehicle Age 
Policy. 
 
The Applicant’s representative was in attendance. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Specialist presented the report. 
 
The vehicle was first registered in the UK on 1 February 2016. The licence had 
expired without a valid renewal application being made. 
 
An application had been made and received by the Council on 27 May 2022 but 
without the accompanying application fee therefore was not accepted. The 
licence then expired on 30 May 2022. The applicant had requested to continue 
with their application for it to be considered by the Licensing Regulatory Panel. 

Page 11



 
The applicant’s representative then gave their representations to the Panel. 
 
It was explained to the Panel that due to the vehicle failing its first test and 
requiring minor repairs the applicant had not allowed for sufficient time to book 
a re-test, and also failed to understand the requirement for including the 
application fee within the timescale. 
The vehicle had since been tested and had passed and the application 
completed in full. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Specialist and the applicant’s representative 
then left the meeting while the Panel considered the application. 
 
Members considered the application, the officer’s report, the representations 
made and advice from officers. The Panel also considered relevant legislation, 
the Vehicle Age Policy and the purposes of the licencing objectives.  
 
Councillor P Gaston moved the motion to grant the hackney carriage vehicle 
licence for one year. 
 
This was seconded by Councillor H Harrington. 
 
A vote was taken, the motion was unanimously agreed. 
The motion was carried. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Specialist and the applicant’s representative 
returned to the meeting. 
 
The applicant’s representative was informed of the decision and its reasons. 
 
Decision/Reasons 
 
The Licensing Regulatory Panel had considered the application, the officer’s 
report, representations made and advice from officers, and also considered the 
relevant legislation and the Council’s Vehicle Age Policy. 
 
The Panel decided to grant the delegated authority to the Licensing and 
Compliance Specialist to grant the hackney carriage vehicle licence for a period 
of one year.  
 
The Panel took the opportunity to emphasise that members had exercised their 
discretion today, but timely and complete applications were essential for the 
Authority to ensure that only safe vehicles were used as licensed taxis. It was 
every driver’s responsibility to ensure this was completed within the prescribed 
timescales, and given the possible implications on a driver’s livelihood, that 
should be an absolute priority. 
 
The Panel acknowledged that the applicant had rectified their failure to pay the 
application fee within 1 day of the current Licence expiring and felt that not 
granting the Licence, given that the vehicle was determined as safe for use, 
would be disproportionate.  
 

Page 12



If the applicant was aggrieved by the decision of the Panel, they could appeal to 
the Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of the decision. 
 

The meeting closed at 2.40 pm 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



At a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Panel held in Council Chamber, Allerdale 
House on Thursday 1 September 2022 at 2.00 pm 
 
Members 
 
Councillor Malcolm Grainger (Chair)  
Councillor Patrick Gorrill Councillor Peter Kendall 
Councillor Adrian Kirkbride Councillor Paul Scott 
 
Staff Present 
 
C Fleming, D Fletcher and G Roach 
 
 
136. Election of Chair  

 
Councillor M Grainger was elected Chair for the ensuing meeting. 
 

137. Declaration of Interests  
 
6. To consider an application to grant a hackney carriage driver licence. 

Councillor Adrian Kirkbride; Other Interest; Due to him knowing the 
applicant although not a close associate. 

 
6. To consider an application to grant a hackney carriage driver licence. 

Councillor Paul Scott; Other Interest; Due to him knowing the applicant 
although not a close associate. 
 

138. Questions  
 
None received. 
 

 Resolved -  
 
That under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds 
that they may involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 1 of part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 

  
139. To consider an application to grant a hackney carriage driver licence  

 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report for the Licensing 
Regulatory Panel to consider whether a person who had made an application 
for a hackney carriage driver’s licence was a fit and proper person to hold such 
a license. 
 
The Applicant was in attendance.  
 
The applicant had held a hackney carriage drivers licence since 2016, that 
licence had expired on 22 September 2021. An application for renewal had 
been made on 9 September 2021. The application was made without the 
required standard documentation and therefore it needed to be considered by 

Page 15



the Panel. The two tests – Knowledge test and Practical Driving test – both 
remained on the applicants licensing record.  
The applicant had asked that the Panel consider the application and the 
extenuating circumstances. 
 
The applicant made their representations to the Panel. They explained that they 
were not familiar or skilled in the use of technology which had hindered their 
application. They had requested assistance from a family member however 
deadlines had still been missed.  
 
Members asked questions on the background of the applicants driving history 
and the current status of the documentation required. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant left the meeting while 
the Panel considered the application. 
 
Members considered the application, the officer’s report, the representations 
made by the applicant and advice from officers. The Panel also considered 
relevant legislation and the purposes of the licencing objectives.  
 
Councillor P Kendall moved to grant the hackney carriage drivers licence for 
one year without the need for re-taking the Knowledge Test and Practical 
Driving Test. 
 
This was seconded by Councillor P Scott. 
 
A vote was taken, the motion was unanimously agreed. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and applicant returned to the meeting. 
 
The decision notice including the reasons for the decision was read out. 
 
Decision/Reasons 
 
The Licensing Regulatory Panel had considered the application, the officer’s 
report, representations from the applicant and advice from officers, and 
considered the relevant legislation. 
 
The Panel decided to grant the delegated authority to the Specialist Licensing 
and Compliance Officer and the Senior Specialist Licensing and Compliance 
Officer to grant the hackney carriage drivers’ license for a period of one year 
without the need for re-taking the Knowledge Test and Practical Driving Test.  
 
The Panel acknowledge that the applicant had been somewhat hindered by the 
need to use technology to complete the application process. The Panel were 
satisfied that given what time had passed since the renewal date and today’s 
Panel, that would not have had a detrimental effect on the applicants practical 
driving skills or knowledge, nor had the tests changed in such a manner that 
would require the applicant to undertake those again. As such, the applicant did 
not pose any risk to the safety of the travelling public.  
 

Page 16



If the applicant was aggrieved by the decision of the Panel, they can appeal to 
the Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of the decision. 
 

140. To consider an application to grant a hackney carriage driver licence  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report for the Licensing 
Regulatory Panel to consider whether a person who had made an application 
for a hackney carriage driver’s licence was a fit and proper person to hold such 
a license. 
 
The Applicant was in attendance. 
 
The applicant had held a hackney carriage drivers licence since 2006, that 
licence had expired on 3 August 2021.  
An application for a new hackney carriage drivers licence for a three year period 
had been made. The application was made without the required standard 
documentation and therefore it needed to be considered by the Panel. The 
missing documents to that application were a medical check, a DBS check, a 
DVLA check and a Right to Work check. The applicant had asked that the Panel 
consider the application and the extenuating circumstances. 
 
The applicant made their representations to the Panel. They explained a 
number of factors had impacted on the completion of the application process 
within the timescales, including the impact of the Covid pandemic on their 
businesses and the health of a family member. 
 
Members asked questions on the background of the applicants driving history. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant left the meeting while 
the Panel considered the application. 
 
Members considered the application, the officer’s report, the representations 
made by the applicant and advice from officers. The Panel also considered 
relevant legislation and the purposes of the licencing objectives.  
 
Councillor P Kendall moved to grant the licence for three years following 
submission of the outstanding documents and without the need for re-taking the 
Knowledge Test and the Practical Driving Test. 
 
This was seconded by Councillor A Kirkbride. 
 
A vote was taken, the motion was unanimously agreed. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant returned to the 
meeting. 
 
The decision notice including the reasons for the decision was read out. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



Decision/Reasons 
 
The Licensing Regulatory Panel had considered the application, the officer’s 
report, representations from the applicant and advice from officers, and also 
considered the relevant legislation. 
 
The Panel had decided to grant the delegated authority to the Specialist 
Licensing and Compliance Officer and the Senior Specialist Licensing and 
Compliance Officer to grant the hackney carriage drivers’ license for a period of 
three years subject to the receipt of the Medical Check, Disclosure and Barring 
Service Check, DVLA Check and Right to Work - without the need for re-taking 
the Knowledge Test and Practical Driving Test.  
 
The Panel was satisfied that given what time had passed since the renewal 
date and today’s Panel, it would not have had a detrimental effect on the 
applicants practical driving skills or knowledge, nor had the tests changed in 
such a manner that would require the applicant to undertake those again. As 
such, the applicant did not pose any risk to the safety of the travelling public. 
 
If the applicant was aggrieved by the decision of the Panel, they can appeal to 
the Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of the decision. 
 

The meeting closed at 2.55 pm 
 

Page 18



At a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Panel held in Council Chamber, Allerdale 
House on Tuesday 25 October 2022 at 1.30 pm 
 
Members 
 
  
Councillor Adrian Kirkbride Councillor William Pegram 
Councillor Paul Scott Councillor Alan Smith 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Malcom Grainger 
 
Staff Present 
 
D Fletcher, K Magnay and J Morgan 
 
 
204. Election of Chair  

 
Councillor A Smith was elected Chair for the ensuing meeting. 
 

205. Declaration of Interests  
 
None received. 
 

206. Questions  
 
None received. 
 

 Resolved  
 
That under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds 
that they may involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 1 of part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 

  
207. To consider an application to grant a hackney carriage vehicle licence  

 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report for the Licensing 
Regulatory Panel to consider a vehicle for hackney carriage vehicle license 
which did not meet the criteria of Allerdale Borough Councils Vehicle Age 
Policy. 
 
The Applicant and representative was in attendance. 
 
The application was to consider whether the council departs from the conditions 
of its Vehicle Age Policy and agree to grant the hackney carriage vehicle 
licence for any period up to one year. 
 
The vehicle was licensed as hackney carriage vehicle and that licence had 
expired without a valid renewal application being made. 
 

Page 19



The applicant had requested that the Licensing Regulatory Panel consider 
licensing the vehicle outside of the Vehicle Age Policy due to their extenuating 
circumstances. 
 
The officer’s recommendation was to refuse the licence. 
 
The applicant’s representative then gave their representations and answered 
questions from members. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant’s representative then 
left the meeting while the panel considered the application. 
 
Members considered the application, the officer’s report, and representations 
from the applicant and advice from officers. The Panel also considered relevant 
legislation, the Vehicle Age Policy and the purposes of the licencing objectives.  
 
Councillor P Scott moved the motion to grant the hackney carriage vehicle 
licence for one year. 
 
This was seconded by Councillor B Pegram. 
 
A vote was taken, the motion was unanimously agreed. 
The motion was carried. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant’s representative 
returned to the meeting. 
 
The applicant was informed of the decision and its reasons. 
 
Decision/Reasons 
 
The Panel has decided to delegate powers to officers to grant the licence for 
one year, delegating the power thereafter to the Licensing and Compliance 
Officer for any subsequent renewal.  Although the vehicle now falls outside the 
Vehicle Age Policy, the vehicle is considered to meet the conditions outlined in 
section 3 of the Council’s Vehicle Age Policy as all of the conditions are now 
met. 
 
The Panel took account of the extenuating circumstances presented by the 
applicant and his mother who represented at the hearing.   
 
The Panel requested that officer support be provided for any future applications. 
 
If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Panel, they can appeal to the 
Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of the decision. 
 

208. To consider an application to grant a hackney carriage vehicle licence  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report for the Licensing 
Regulatory Panel to consider a vehicle for hackney carriage vehicle license 
which did not meet the criteria of Allerdale Borough Councils Vehicle Age 
Policy. 

Page 20



 
The Applicant and representatives were in attendance. 
 
The application was to consider whether the council departs from the conditions 
of its Vehicle Age Policy and agree to grant the hackney carriage vehicle 
licence for any period up to one year. 
 
The vehicle was licensed as hackney carriage vehicle and that licence had 
expired without a valid renewal application being made. 
 
The applicant had requested that the Licensing Regulatory Panel consider 
licensing the vehicle outside of the Vehicle Age Policy due to their extenuating 
circumstances. 
 
The officer’s recommendation was to refuse the licence. 
 
The applicant and representatives then gave their representations and advised 
the panel they have been working closely with the Licensing Team and AWS to 
plan ahead for the renewal dates they also answered questions from members. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer, the applicant and the applicant’s 
representatives then left the meeting while the panel considered the application. 
 
Members considered the application, the officer’s report, and representations 
from the applicant and advice from officers. The Panel also considered relevant 
legislation, the Vehicle Age Policy and the purposes of the licencing objectives.  
 
Councillor A Kirkbride moved the motion to grant the hackney carriage vehicle 
licence for one year. 
 
This was seconded by Councillor P Scott. 
 
A vote was taken, the motion was unanimously agreed. 
The motion was carried. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer, the applicant and the applicant’s 
representatives returned to the meeting. 
 
The applicant was informed of the decision and its reasons. 
 
Decision/Reasons 
 
The Panel has decided to delegate powers to officers to grant the licence for 
one year, delegating the power thereafter to the Licensing and Compliance 
Officer for any subsequent renewal.  Although the vehicle now falls outside the 
Vehicle Age Policy, it is now considered to meet the conditions outlined in 
section 3 of the Council’s Vehicle Age Policy. 
 
The Panel took account of the extenuating circumstances presented by the 
applicant.  It considered the fact that the applicant has been working closely 
with the Licensing Team and AWS, to ensure that in future, they plan test and 
renewal dates earlier.   

Page 21



 
If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Panel, they can appeal to the 
Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of the decision. 
 

209. To consider an application to grant a private hire vehicle  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report for the Licensing 
Regulatory Panel to consider a vehicle for private vehicle license which did not 
meet the criteria of Allerdale Borough Councils Vehicle Age Policy. 
 
The Applicant and representatives were in attendance. 
 
The application was to consider whether the council departs from the conditions 
of its Vehicle Age Policy and agree to grant the private hire vehicle licence for 
any period up to one year. 
 
The vehicle was licensed as private hire vehicle and that licence had expired 
without a valid renewal application being made. 
 
The applicant had requested that the Licensing Regulatory Panel consider 
licensing the vehicle outside of the Vehicle Age Policy due to their extenuating 
circumstances. 
 
The officer’s recommendation was to refuse the licence. 
 
The applicant and representatives then gave their representations and advised 
the panel they have been working closely with the Licensing Team and AWS to 
plan ahead for the renewal dates, they also explained that they have had 
difficulty sourcing parts, they also answered questions from members. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer, the applicant and representatives then 
left the meeting while the panel considered the application. 
 
Members considered the application, the officer’s report, and representations 
from the applicant and advice from officers. The Panel also considered relevant 
legislation, the Vehicle Age Policy and the purposes of the licencing objectives.  
 
Councillor A Kirkbride moved the motion to grant the hackney carriage vehicle 
licence for one year. 
 
This was seconded by Councillor P Scott. 
 
A vote was taken, the motion was unanimously agreed. 
The motion was carried. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer, the applicant and representatives 
returned to the meeting. 
 
The applicant was informed of the decision and its reasons. 
 
 
 

Page 22



Decision/Reasons 
 
The Panel has decided to delegate powers to officers to grant the licence for 
one year, delegating the power thereafter to the Licensing and Compliance 
Officer for any subsequent renewal.  Although the vehicle now falls outside the 
Vehicle Age Policy, it is now considered to meet the conditions outlined in 
section 3 of the Council’s Vehicle Age Policy. 
 
The Panel took account of the extenuating circumstances presented by the 
applicant.  It considered the fact that the applicant has been working closely 
with the Licensing Team and AWS, to ensure that in future, they plan test and 
renewal dates earlier.   
 
The Panel also considered the information provided by the applicant about their 
difficulties in sourcing parts for vehicles within the required timescales. 
 
If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Panel, they can appeal to the 
Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of the decision. 
 

210. To consider an application to grant a hackney carriage vehicle licence  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report for the Licensing 
Regulatory Panel to consider a vehicle for hackney carriage vehicle license 
which did not meet the criteria of Allerdale Borough Councils Vehicle Age 
Policy. 
 
The Applicant and representatives were in attendance. 
 
The application was to consider whether the council departs from the conditions 
of its Vehicle Age Policy and agree to grant the hackney carriage vehicle 
licence for any period up to one year. 
 
The vehicle was licensed as hackney carriage vehicle and that licence had 
expired without a valid renewal application being made. 
 
The applicant had requested that the Licensing Regulatory Panel consider 
licensing the vehicle outside of the Vehicle Age Policy due to their extenuating 
circumstances. 
 
The officer’s recommendation was to refuse the licence. 
 
The applicant and representatives then gave their representations and advised 
the panel they have been working closely with the Licensing Team and AWS to 
plan ahead for the renewal dates they also answered questions from members. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer, the applicant and representatives then 
left the meeting while the panel considered the application. 
 
Members considered the application, the officer’s report, and representations 
from the applicant and advice from officers. The Panel also considered relevant 
legislation, the Vehicle Age Policy and the purposes of the licencing objectives.  
 

Page 23



Councillor A Kirkbride moved the motion to grant the hackney carriage vehicle 
licence for one year. 
 
This was seconded by Councillor P Scott. 
 
A vote was taken, the motion was unanimously agreed. 
The motion was carried. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer, the applicant and representatives 
returned to the meeting. 
 
The applicant was informed of the decision and its reasons. 
 
Decision/Reasons 
 
The Panel has decided to delegate powers to officers to grant the licence for 
one year, delegating the power thereafter to the Licensing and Compliance 
Officer for any subsequent renewal.  Although the vehicle now falls outside the 
Vehicle Age Policy, it is now considered to meet the conditions outlined in 
section 3 of the Council’s Vehicle Age Policy. 
 
The Panel took account of the extenuating circumstances presented by the 
applicant.  It considered the fact that the applicant has been working closely 
with the Licensing Team and AWS, to ensure that in future, they plan test and 
renewal dates earlier.   
 
If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Panel, they can appeal to the 
Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of the decision. 
 

211. To consider an application to grant a hackney carriage vehicle licence  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report for the Licensing 
Regulatory Panel to consider a vehicle for hackney carriage vehicle license 
which did not meet the criteria of Allerdale Borough Councils Vehicle Age 
Policy. 
 
The Applicant was not in attendance but had provided written representation. 
 
The application was to consider whether the council departs from the conditions 
of its Vehicle Age Policy and agree to grant the hackney carriage vehicle 
licence for any period up to one year. 
 
The vehicle was licensed as hackney carriage vehicle and that licence had 
expired without a valid renewal application being made. 
 
The applicant had requested that the Licensing Regulatory Panel consider 
licensing the vehicle outside of the Vehicle Age Policy due to their extenuating 
circumstances. 
 
The officer’s recommendation was to refuse the licence. 
 

Page 24



The Licensing and Compliance Officer left the meeting while the panel 
considered the application. 
 
Members considered the application, the officer’s report, and advice from 
officers. The Panel also considered relevant legislation, the Vehicle Age Policy 
and the purposes of the licencing objectives.  
 
Councillor P Scott moved the motion to grant the hackney carriage vehicle 
licence for one year. 
 
This was seconded by Councillor B Pegram. 
 
A vote was taken, the motion was unanimously agreed. 
The motion was carried. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant’s representative 
returned to the meeting. 
 
The applicant was informed of the decision and its reasons. 
 
Decision/Reasons 
 
The Panel has decided to delegate powers to officers to grant the licence for 
one year, delegating the power thereafter to the Licensing and Compliance 
Officer for any subsequent renewal.  Although the vehicle now falls outside the 
Vehicle Age Policy, it is now considered to meet the conditions outlined in 
section 3 of the Council’s Vehicle Age Policy. 
 
The Panel took into account the extenuating circumstances provided by the 
applicant in his written representations in making its decision.  The Panel would 
advise the applicant to contact the Licensing Team earlier in the event of further 
difficulties. 
 
If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Panel, they can appeal to the 
Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of the decision. 
 

The meeting closed at 3.33 pm 
 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



At a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Panel held in Council Chamber, Allerdale 
House on Tuesday 15 November 2022 at 2.30 pm 
 
Members 
 
  
Councillor Jimmy Grisdale Councillor Hilary Harrington 
Councillor William Pegram Councillor Colin Sharpe 
 
Apologies for absence were received from  Councillor Patrick Gorrill 
 
Staff Present 
 
D Fletcher, K Magnay and J Morgan 
 
 
230. Election of Chair  

 
Councillor H Harrington was elected Chair for the ensuing meeting. 
 

231. Declaration of Interests  
 
None declared. 
 

232. Questions  
 
None received. 
 

233. To consider an application for a Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report for the Licensing 
Regulatory Panel to consider a vehicle for hackney carriage vehicle licence 
which did not meet the criteria of Allerdale Borough Councils Vehicle Age 
Policy. 
 
The Applicant was in attendance. 
 
The application was to consider whether the council departs from the conditions 
of its Vehicle Age Policy and agree to grant the hackney carriage vehicle 
licence for any period up to one year. 
 
The vehicle was licensed as hackney carriage vehicle and that licence had 
expired without a valid renewal application being made. 
 
The applicant had requested that the Licensing Regulatory Panel consider 
licensing the vehicle outside of the Vehicle Age Policy due to their extenuating 
circumstances. 
 
The officer’s recommendation was to refuse the licence. 
 
The applicant advised members he had been unwell prior to the expiry date. 
 

Page 27



The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant then left the meeting 
while the panel considered the application. 
 
Members considered the application, the officer’s report, and representations 
from the applicant and advice from officers. The Panel also considered relevant 
legislation, the Vehicle Age Policy and the purposes of the licencing objectives.  
 
Councillor B Pegram moved the motion to grant the hackney carriage vehicle 
licence for one year. 
 
This was seconded by Councillor J Grisdale. 
 
A vote was taken, the motion was unanimously agreed. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant returned to the 
meeting. 
 
The applicant was informed of the decision and its reasons. 
 
Decision/Reasons 
 
The Panel has decided to delegate powers to officers to grant the licence for 
one year, delegating the power thereafter to the Licensing and Compliance 
Officer for any subsequent renewal.  Although the vehicle now falls outside the 
Vehicle Age Policy, it is considered to meet the conditions outlined in section 3 
of the Policy as all of the conditions are now met. 
 
The Panel took account of the extenuating circumstances presented by the 
applicant and the fact that he had been unwell prior to the expiry date. 
 
If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Panel, they can appeal to the 
Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of the decision. 
 

 
The meeting closed at 3.00 pm 
 

Page 28



At a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Panel held in Council Chamber, Allerdale 
House on Friday 6 January 2023 at 1.30 pm 
 
Members 
 
  
Councillor Peter Gaston Councillor Jimmy Grisdale 
Councillor Peter Kendall Councillor Alan Smith 
 
Apologies for absence were received from   
 
Staff Present 
 
D Fletcher, K Magnay and J Morgan 
 
 
303. Election of Chair  

 
Councillor J Grisdale was elected Chair for the ensuing meeting. 
 

304. Declaration of Interests  
 
None declared. 
 

305. Questions  
 
None received. 
 

306. To consider an application to grant a hackney carriage vehicle licence  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report for the Licensing 
Regulatory Panel to consider a vehicle for hackney carriage vehicle licence 
which did not meet the criteria of Allerdale Borough Councils Vehicle Age 
Policy. 
 
The Applicant was in attendance. 
 
The application was to consider whether the council departs from the conditions 
of its Vehicle Age Policy and agree to grant the hackney carriage vehicle 
licence for any period up to one year. 
 
The vehicle was licensed as hackney carriage vehicle by a different licence 
holder. The applicant purchased the vehicle after the licence had expired. 
 
The applicant had requested that the Licensing Regulatory Panel consider 
licensing the vehicle outside of the Vehicle Age Policy due to their extenuating 
circumstances. 
 
The officer’s recommendation was to refuse the licence. 
 

Page 29



The applicant advised members it was unknown to them when they bought the 
vehicle that the licence had expired, it only came known to them when they put 
the paperwork into Allerdale to transfer the licence. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant then left the meeting 
while the panel considered the application. 
 
Members considered the application, the officer’s report, and representations 
from the applicant and advice from officers. The Panel also considered relevant 
legislation, the Vehicle Age Policy and the purposes of the licencing objectives.  
 
Councillor A Smith moved the motion to grant the hackney carriage vehicle 
licence for one year. 
 
This was seconded by Councillor P Kendall. 
 
A vote was taken, the motion was unanimously agreed. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant returned to the 
meeting. 
 
The applicant was informed of the decision and its reasons. 
 
Decision/Reasons 
 
Members have considered the application, the officer’s report, representations 
from the applicant and advice from officers. The Panel also considered relevant 
legislation and the Council’s Vehicle Age Policy. 
 
The Panel has decided to delegate powers to officers to grant the licence for 
one year, delegating the power thereafter to the Licensing and Compliance 
Officer for any subsequent renewal. Although the vehicle now falls outside the 
Vehicle Age Policy, it is now considered to meet the conditions outlined in 
section 3 of the Council’s Vehicle Age Policy. 
 
The Panel took account of the extenuating circumstances presented by the 
applicant. It considered the fact that when the applicant purchased the vehicle, 
they were unaware that it had expired. It also considered the fact that the 
applicant had acted quickly to ensure that work was done to ensure that the 
vehicle was compliant. 
 
If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Panel, they can appeal to the 
Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of the decision. 
 

307. To consider an application to grant a hackney carriage vehicle licence  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report for the Licensing 
Regulatory Panel to consider a vehicle for hackney carriage vehicle licence 
which did not meet the criteria of Allerdale Borough Councils Vehicle Age 
Policy. 

Page 30



 
The Applicant did not attend the meeting. 
 
The application was to consider whether the council departs from the conditions 
of its Vehicle Age Policy and agree to grant the hackney carriage vehicle 
licence for any period up to one year. 
 
The vehicle was previously licensed as hackney carriage vehicle. The vehicle 
was over four years old and was subject to the Vehicle Age Policy. 
 
The applicant had requested that the Licensing Regulatory Panel consider 
licensing the vehicle outside of the Vehicle Age Policy due to their extenuating 
circumstances. 
 
The officer’s recommendation was to refuse the licence. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer then left the meeting while the panel 
considered the application. 
 
Members felt they couldn’t consider the application in the applicant’s absence 
due to there being no representation. 
 
Councillor P Gaston proposed to defer the application 
 
This was seconded by Councillor A Smith. 
 
A vote was taken: 3 voted in favour of deferral, 0 against and 1 abstention. 
 
The motion for deferral was carried. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer and the applicant returned to the 
meeting. 
 
Decision/Reasons 
 
Deferred 
 

308. To consider an application to grant a private hire vehicle  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report for the Licensing 
Regulatory Panel to consider a vehicle for private vehicle license which did not 
meet the criteria of Allerdale Borough Councils Vehicle Age Policy. 
 
The Applicant was in attendance. 
 
The application was to consider whether the council departs from the conditions 
of its Vehicle Age Policy and agree to grant the private hire vehicle licence for 
any period up to one year. 
 
The vehicle was licensed as private hire vehicle and that licence had expired 
without a valid renewal application being made. 
 

Page 31



The applicant had requested that the Licensing Regulatory Panel consider 
licensing the vehicle outside of the Vehicle Age Policy due to their extenuating 
circumstances. 
 
The officer’s recommendation was to refuse the licence. 
 
The applicant then gave his representations and advised the panel he now has 
everything in place going forward and has employed a member of staff to deal 
with this to avoid this happening again.  
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer, the applicant then left the meeting while 
the panel considered the application. 
 
Members considered the application, the officer’s report, and representations 
from the applicant and advice from officers. The Panel also considered relevant 
legislation, the Vehicle Age Policy and the purposes of the licencing objectives.  
 
Councillor A Smith moved the motion to grant the licence for one year. 
 
This was seconded by Councillor P Gaston. 
 
A vote was taken, the motion was unanimously agreed. 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
The Licensing and Compliance Officer, the applicant and representatives 
returned to the meeting. 
 
The applicant was informed of the decision and its reasons. 
 
Decision/Reasons 
 
Members have considered the application, the officer’s report, representations 
from the applicant and advice from officers. The Panel also considered relevant 
legislation and the Council’s Vehicle Age Policy. 
 
The Panel has decided to delegate powers to officers to grant the licence for 
one year, delegating the power thereafter to the Licensing and Compliance 
Officer for any subsequent renewal.  Although the vehicle now falls outside the 
Vehicle Age Policy, it is now considered to meet the conditions outlined in 
section 3 of the Council’s Vehicle Age Policy. 
 
The Panel took account of the extenuating circumstances presented by the 
applicant and the fact that he has taken steps to ensure that the vehicle is now 
compliant. 
 
If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Panel, they can appeal to the 
Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of the decision. 
 
 

The meeting closed at 2.29 pm 
 

Page 32



Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Licensing Committee – 6 February 2023 

 

Frequency of vehicle testing – hackney carriage and 
private hire vehicles 

 
 
Portfolio holder   Councillor Colin Sharpe 
     Portfolio Holder for Legal and Finance 

Report from Gillian Collinson – Senior Specialist – Licensing and      
Compliance 

Wards affected   All Wards 

Is this a key decision  Yes 
 

 
 

1.0  The reason for the decision 

1.1 To consider an amendment to the Vehicle Age Policy which covers hackney 
carriage and private hire vehicles. 

 

2.0  Recommendations 

2.1 To agree to amend the Vehicle Age Policy by: 
 
2.1.1 Replacing clause 4 of the existing Vehicle Age Policy with the following wording: 
 
  “Once licensed if a vehicle is over four years of age from the first date of 

registration or reaches four years of age from the first date of registration within the 
duration of its licence, a vehicle test is required no later than four months following 
the commencement date of the vehicle licence and no earlier than 28 days before 
that date.  
 
Once established that a vehicle is either already 4 or will turn 4 during the licence 
period, 4 monthly vehicle test dates will be due at equal intervals during the licence 
period. For example, if a vehicle turns four on 1 May and the commencement of the 
licence was 1 April, the 4 monthly test due dates will be 1 Aug, 1 Dec and the 
renewal test will be due by 1 April. Tests are valid up to 28 days in advance of the 
due date. If the test is carried out early or late the next test will still be due at the 
original set date meaning the vehicle is tested at equal points during the licence 
period.  
 

Page 33

Agenda Item 5



Tests to be undertaken by the Council’s contractor.  Failure to comply with this 
requirement will lead to the suspension of the vehicle or refusal to renew the vehicle 
licence”; and 

 
2.1.2 Updating the delegated powers for the suspension/revocation of vehicle licences for 

failure to undertake or pass the required tests to the Senior Specialist – Licensing 
and Compliance and the Specialist – Licensing and Compliance.   

 

3.0  Background and Introduction 

 
 Current policy 
 
3.1 The Council is the licensing authority for hackney carriage and private hire vehicles 

by virtue of the provisions of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 and the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.  The Authority sets the licence 
conditions that must be complied with for a licence to be granted.  Conditions 
include the age at which a vehicle can be presented for first time licensing and once 
licensed, the frequency at which it must be presented for testing.  For routine testing 
this may be up to a maximum of three times per year, as specified in the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. 

3.2 As part of the licensing regime, vehicles are tested to ensure that they meet the 
standards required by Allerdale Borough Council. 

3.3 The Council’s Vehicle Age Policy was last revised in May 2021.  The purpose of 
that policy is to ensure that all hackney carriage and private hire vehicles operating 
in the borough are in exceptional condition and remain safe for the use of the 
general public.  It contains two stipulations: 

3.3.1 No vehicle will be licensed as a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle if it is four 
years of age or older at date of application. 

3.3.2 Once licensed, a vehicle can continue to be licensed beyond the age of four years 
providing it complies with the following conditions. 

a full service history from the applicant’s date of purchase of the vehicle in         
accordance with the manufacturer’s service schedule and/or supporting  
documentation evidencing a regular, preventative maintenance schedule. This can 
be in the form of a stamped service history book or invoices but the vehicle 
registration number, date of the works and contact information of the party which 
carried out the works must be stated on any invoice. Producing invoices to show 
repair work will not be sufficient, they must show regular servicing.  

   
no rust, significant dents or significant scratches. This is obviously open to individual 
interpretation and each case will be considered on its own merits.   

 

an excellent interior which is safe, clean and free of holes, tears and wear and tear. 
 

Page 34



3.4 The Vehicle Age Policy stipulates (at clause 4) a further requirement for vehicles 
aged four years or over which states: 

3.4.1 Once licensed if a vehicle is over four years of age from the first date of registration 

or reaches four years of age from the first date of registration within the duration of 

its licence, a vehicle test is required no later than four months following the 

commencement date of the vehicle licence and no earlier than 28 days before that 

date (First Four Month Test Date).  

3.4.2 For example, if a vehicle turns four on 29 March, it must be tested by 29 July at the 

latest, but no earlier than 1 July.  Following the First Four Month Test Date, 

subsequent tests must be completed no later than four months following the 

previous test and no earlier than 28 days before each subsequent four month test is 

due to be undertaken.  Tests to be undertaken by the Council’s contractor.  Failure 

to comply with this requirement will lead to the suspension of the vehicle or refusal 

to renew the vehicle licence. 

4.0  Content 

4.1  The condition in paragraph 3.4.1 is correct but it is the example given at 3.4.2 which 
is causing confusion regarding the timing of the tests as it contradicts the wording in 
3.4.1.The wording for the proposed amendment to the Vehicle Age Policy is 
outlined in paragraph 2.1.1. 

 
4.2 The remainder of the Vehicle Age Policy conditions would continue to apply. 
 
4.3 A taxi/private hire test certificate is valid for a period of 28 days.  This is the reason 

for having a requirement not to undertake the test more than 28 days in advance of 
the due date. 

 
4.4 Delegated Powers 
    

The delegated powers for the suspension/revocation of vehicle licences for failure 
to undertake or pass the required tests require updating to the following: 
 
Senior Specialist - Licensing & Compliance and; 
Specialist - Licensing & Compliance 
 

5.0  Delivery arrangements 

 
5.1 Should the Licensing Committee decide to approve the recommendations contained 

within this report, the Licensing Department will work closely with the relevant 
contractor to ensure that high standards of service are maintained. 

Page 35



6.0 Implications and Impact 

6.1 Contribution to Council Strategy Priorities, Outputs and Outcomes  

Outstanding Local Services: increasing the frequency of testing will ensure that 
local hackney carriage and private hire services are maintained to an excellent 
standard for use by residents and services.  

Resilient Communities: by providing high quality testing facilities at more frequent 
intervals, the safety of the travelling public will be protected. 

6.2 Finance/Resource implications 

There are no finance/resource implications for the Council. Fees for taxi testing are 
paid directly to the contractor and are not paid as part of the licence fee. 

 

6.3 Legal and governance implications  

There are no legal and governance implications arising from the report.  The 
relevant legislation in respect of taxi testing and public safety comprises the Town 
Police Clauses Act 1847 and the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976. 

6.4 Risk analysis 

 A scored and mitigated risk log 
 

Risk Consequence Controls required 
Mitigated 
score 

    

 

6.5 Increasing satisfaction and service 

If approved, the recommendations of this report will ensure an increase in public 
safety and will ensure that the relevant requirements outlined in the relevant 
legislation are complied with.  

6.6 Equality impacts 

 There are no equality implications arising from this report.  

6.7 Health and Safety impacts 

 Health and Safety has been considered fully to ensure the highest standards. 

6.8 Health, wellbeing and community safety impacts 

Public safety is of primary concern within the licensing regime and has been 
considered fully to ensure the highest standards.  Should the recommendations in 
this report be approved, there will be an increase in the standard of public safety 
due to the associated increase in the frequency of vehicle testing. 

Page 36



6.9 Environmental/sustainability impacts 

Vehicle emissions are monitored regularly as part of the vehicle testing criteria, 
which ensures that the fleet complies with current environmental standards.  

6.10 Other significant implications 

 N/A. 
 

Appendices attached to this report 

 

Appendix number Title of appendix 

1 Vehicle Age Policy (revised May 2021) 

 

Background documents available 

 

Name of background document Where it is available 

N/A  

 
 
Report author(s) and contact officer(s): 
Gillian Collinson 
Senior Licensing and Compliance Officer 
Gillian.collinson@allerdale.gov.uk 
01900 702861 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



1 | P a g e  
 

 
  

Hackney Carriage 

and Private Hire 

Vehicle Age Policy 
 

 

 

 

 

                                                             Version 1.0 (2021) 

Licensing Department  

Allerdale Borough Council 

Allerdale House 

Workington 

CA14 3YJ 

 

“Allerdale – a great place to live, work and visit” 
 

Page 39



2 | P a g e  
 

Document Control 

Title Allerdale Borough Council – Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire Vehicle Age Policy 

Document Type Approved Document 

Author Gillian Collinson - Senior Licensing & Compliance Officer 

Owner Senior Licensing & Compliance Officer 

Subject Licensing 

Created May 2021 

 

Version Control Table 

Version Date Detail    Author Approver 

1.0 14/05/21 New document G Collinson 
Licensing 
Committee 

     
    

 

     

Next review date: 31 March 2022 (or earlier if required) 

  

Page 40



3 | P a g e  
 

Table of Contents 
Introduction………………………………..………………………………………………....4 

Conditions………….………………………………………………………………………...4 

Once Licensed.……………………………………………………………………………...5 

 

 

 

 
  

Page 41



4 | P a g e  
 

1. Introduction  
 

1.1 The purpose of this policy is to ensure all hackney carriages and private hire 

vehicles operating in the borough are in exceptional condition and remain safe for 

the use of the general public. 

 

1.2 No vehicle will be licensed as a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle if it is four 

years of age or older at date of application. 

 

1.3 However, once licensed a vehicle can continue to be licensed beyond the age of 

four years providing it complies with the conditions set out below. 

 
 

2. Conditions 
 

2.1 The following conditions have been designed to assist an applicant to decide 
whether their vehicle is in exceptional condition and safe for the use of the general 
public: 

 
2.2 The vehicle must have: 
 
2.2.1 a full service history from the applicant’s date of purchase of the vehicle in 

accordance with the manufacturer’s service schedule and/or supporting 
documentation evidencing a regular, preventative maintenance schedule. This can 
be in the form of a stamped service history book or invoices but the vehicle 
registration number, date of the works and contact information of the party which 
carried out the works must be stated on any invoice. Producing invoices to show 
repair work will not be sufficient, they must show regular servicing.  

   
2.2.2 no rust, significant dents or significant scratches. This is obviously open to 

individual interpretation and each case will be considered on its own merits.   

 

2.2.3 an excellent interior which is safe, clean and free of holes, tears and wear and tear. 

 

Page 42



5 | P a g e  
 

3. Once Licenced 
 

3.1 Once licensed if a vehicle is over four years of age from the first date of registration or 

reaches four years of age from the first date of registration within the duration of its 

licence, a vehicle test is required no later than four months following the 

commencement date of the vehicle licence and no earlier than 28 days before that 

date (First Four Month Test Date).  For example, if a vehicle turns four on 29 March, it 

must be tested by 29 July at the latest, but no earlier than 1 July.  Following the First 

Four Month Test Date, subsequent tests must be completed no later than four months 

following the previous test and no earlier than 28 days before each subsequent four 

month test is due to be undertaken.  Tests to be undertaken by the Council’s 

contractor.  Failure to comply with this requirement will lead to the suspension of the 

vehicle or refusal to renew the vehicle licence. 

 

3.2 Upon every renewal, the above conditions must be satisfied and evidenced prior to the 

expiry of the licence; should the expiry date pass without the completion of a 

successful renewal then a new application would be required. This means the vehicle 

could not be used as a hackney carriage or for private hire until a new licence has 

been granted by the Licensing Authority. 

 

It is recommended that before proceeding with an application you contact either the 

Licensing Team or the Council’s appointed testing station for clarification on any of 

the above points. 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44



Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Licensing Committee – 6 February 2023 

 

Taxi/Private Hire Change of Conditions 

     

 
 
Portfolio holder   Councillor Colin Sharpe 
     Portfolio Holder for Legal and Finance 

Report from Gillian Collinson – Senior Specialist – Licensing and   
Compliance       

Wards affected   All Wards 

Is this a key decision  Yes  
 

 
 

1.0 The reason for the decision 

 
1.1 To award delegated powers to the Senior Specialist – Licensing and Compliance in 

conjunction with the Senior Manager – Environmental Health and Housing to 
amend Allerdale Borough Council’s Hackney Carriage and Private Hire conditions 
of application and licence.  
 

2.0  Recommendation 
 
2.1 To consider the information contained within paragraph 4 to decide whether to 

approve delegated powers. 

3.0  Background and Introduction 

  
3.1 Following the commencement of Cumberland Council on 1 April 2023 there will be a 

period whereby Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policies from 
sovereign policies will remain in place until a consolidated policy for Cumberland is 
approved.  

 
3.2 In order for licensed vehicles and drivers to be provided with agreed Cumberland 

Branding and livery from 1 April 2023 it is necessary to amend the conditions/policy 
of Allerdale Borough Council.  

 
 

Page 45

Agenda Item 6



4.0  Content  

 
4.1 Branding guidelines have now been approved for Cumberland Council. To ensure 

vehicle licence plates, vehicle livery and driving badges can be issued from 1 April 
2023 it is necessary to change the current policy.  

4.2 Current conditions require chequered stripes on hackney carriages. This will be 
removed and replaced with door signs for both hackney and private hire vehicles. 
An internal plate will be introduced detailing how a passenger can make a 
compliment, comment or complaint. Existing conditions requiring plates to be 
affixed to the front and rear of vehicles (all vehicles), provision of a roof sign and 
meter (hackney carriages only) will remain. 

4.3 The official branding guidelines have just been approved and arrangements are 
underway with the current supplier to draw up designs and pricing. As this is likely 
to take a period of time it is prudent to request delegated powers for the conditions 
to be amended when they are finalised.  

5.0  Delivery arrangements 

 
5.1 Vehicle licence plates, livery and badges with the new branding will be issued as 

part of licences granted/renewed after 1 April 2023. Due to time constraints and 
resource it is not possible to roll these out to everyone prior to April.   

6.1 Contribution to Council Strategy Priorities, Outputs and Outcomes  

6.1.1 Outstanding local services – Clearer identification of taxis and private hire vehicles 
will make it easier for residents and visitors to contact us with any issues.   

6.2 Finance/Resource implications 

6.2.1 The cost of vehicle identification plates, badges and livery are already included in 
the price of a licence. There will be no additional resource required. 

6.3 Legal and governance implications  

6.3.1 It is necessary for all sovereign authorities to amend their policies in order to have 
uniform branding for licensed vehicles in Cumberland Council area from 1 April 
2023.  

6.4 Risk analysis 

 A scored and mitigated risk log 
 

Risk Consequence Controls required 
Mitigated 
score 

    

 

6.5 Increasing satisfaction and service 

6.5.1 New livery requirements will assist the community identify the taxis from private hire 
vehicles, who the private hire operator is and help communicate the change in 

Page 46



unitary status. By introducing an internal plate with a QR code it is an additional 
service which will aid the public make a swift comment or complaint immediately.  

6.6 Equality impacts 

6.6.1 Standards will be applied equally across the hackney and private hire licensed trade 
and for this reason it is not necessary to complete an impact assessment.  

6.7 Health and Safety impacts 

6.7.1 Affording to maintain standards will promote the health and safety of the trade and 
 the travelling public. 

6.8 Health, wellbeing and community safety impacts 

6.8.1 The focus of the standards is to protect children and vulnerable adults and the 
nature of them will by extension, protect all passengers and the people working in 
the trade. 

6.9 Environmental/sustainability impacts 

6.9.1 Not applicable 

6.10 Other significant implications 

6.10.1 No other significant implications. 
 

Appendices attached to this report 

 

Appendix number Title of appendix 

N/A N/A 

  

 

Background documents available 

 

Name of background document Where it is available 

N/A N/A 

 
 
Report author(s) and contact officer(s): 
Gillian Collinson  
Senior Specialist – Licensing and Compliance   
gillian.collinson@allerdale.gov.uk  
0303 123 1702  

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Licensing Committee – 6 February 2023 

 

Hackney Carriage Vehicles – Review of Table of Fares 

 
 
Portfolio holder   Councillor Colin Sharpe 
     Portfolio Holder for Legal and Finance 

Report from Gillian Collinson – Senior Specialist – Licensing and   
Compliance       

Wards affected   All Wards 

Is this a key decision  Yes  
 

 
 

1.0  The reason for the decision 

1.1 To review the decision made to increase the table of fares in 2022 in light of 
updated current economic circumstances.  
 

2.0  Recommendations 
2.1 To consider the information contained within paragraphs 5 and 6 and decide 

whether to vary the table of fares and set the levels accordingly; or 
 
2.2 Retain the table of fares as existing. 

3.0  Background and Introduction 

  
3.1 The Local Authority fix the rates or fares within the borough that hackney carriage 

proprietors can charge for their services. This can cover time, distance and all other 
charges in connection with the hire of a vehicle and is known as the “table of fares”.  
Once the fares are set, the hackney proprietor must have the meter in the vehicle 
calibrated to those fares and sealed to prevent tampering. This is the maximum that 
can be charged but a proprietor does have discretion to charge less than the meter 
price. The meter must always be used for each fare and display the current table of 
fares. There is also a separate tariff card which is displayed in the vehicle for the 
passengers’ benefit. 

 

3.4 The fares are fixed in accordance with Section 65(1) of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. If Members agree to vary the fares subject to 
confirmation from Executive, this must be published in at least one newspaper 
circulating in the Borough, giving at least 14 days for objections. Following the 

Page 49

Agenda Item 7



publication of such Notice, the new table of fares will come into operation, provided 
no objections are received. If objections are received either from the trade or the 
public, the item is referred back for consideration. A new date will then be set which 
cannot be more than 2 months after the original date.  

 

3.5 The last variation of the table of fares by this Authority was on 10 June 2022 and 
came into effect on 18 July 2022. The decision was considered in conjunction with 
written representations from members of the trade, those present at the meeting 
and financial information accompanying the report. A copy of the report is attached 
at appendix 1. A comparison of the fares before and after the variation is attached 
at appendix 2. The proposed figures recommended by Licensing Committee and 
confirmed by Executive are in red.  

 
3.6     Other amendments to the fares included the following: 
 
 Tariff 2 – hiring time to start at 11.00pm instead of midnight; and 
 Tariff 3 – hiring time extended to 6.00am from 4.00am on specified days. 
 
 
4.0 Background Information 
  
4.1 The Licensing Committee considered a review of the fares taking into account the 

level of inflation, fuel prices and the minimum wage that businesses are subject to. 
In addition 13 responses from the trade following a consultation were considered. 
Four members of the trade attended the committee meeting and answered 
questions from the Members, expanded on their consultation responses and 
entered into a discussion with the committee about the running costs of their 
businesses.  

 
4.2 It was decided a 10% increase would be appropriate due to the above and it was 

also acknowledged that the last increase was 1 April 2018. Together with the trade 

the figures were agreed with tariffs 2 and 3 being rounded and a rewording to 

amend the times due to the pattern of the night time economy changing. There was 

no appetite to increase the price for each article of luggage conveyed outside the 

passenger compartment by either the trade or the committee.  

4.3 The fouling charge was increased significantly as it is recognised that as well as a 

valeting charge the vehicle would be unusable for the remainder of the day/evening 

with the business incurring lost fares. 

4.4 In light of the fast moving economic changes the Licensing Committee requested 

that a further review take place in 6 months. 

5.0  Content  

 
5.1 Consultation and responses from the trade 

5.2 The table of fares review usually takes place on an annual basis but there was no 
review in 2019, 2020 or 2021. A consultation with the hackney carriage trade took 

Page 50



place between 19 April 2022 and 13 May 2022. Within that time, 13 responses were 
received requesting an increase. 

5.3 Fuel Price Report (Source: AA) 

5.4 For Members’ information, extracts from the Fuel Price Report are in the table 
below. The reports are published on a monthly basis and shows the UK average 
price across garages and supermarkets for diesel and super unleaded per litre 
across the North West. Information has been updated since the last report to 
Committee to include fuel price reports from May 2022.  

Garages and 
Supermarkets 

Diesel (pence) Super unleaded (pence) 

April 2018 124.2 131.3 

April 2019  132.0 137.3 

April 2020 115.6 125.9 

April 2021 129.1 138.5 

December 2021 149.6 155 

January 2022 149 157.5 

February 2022 151.6 160.1 

March 2022 173.8 174.4 

April 2022 175.9 175.8 

May 2022 179.8 178.5 

June 2022 196.1 199.6 

July 2022 196.6 199.8 

August 2022 183.2 185.9 

September 2022 181.0 177.0 

October 2022 186.5 177.8 

November 2022 188.0 178.3 

 

5.5 A comparison of the prices per litre at 10 June 2022 and the writing of this report in 
the Allerdale area are below: 

  10/06/22 10/06/22 20/01/23 20/01/23 

Locality/Garage Diesel 
(pence) 

Unleaded 
(pence) 

Diesel 
(pence) 

Unleaded 
(pence) 

Asda 181.7 174.7 167.7 142.7 

Aspatria Unknown Unknown 169.9 144.9 

Cockermouth  190.9 189.9 174.9 149.9 

Keswick Unknown Unknown 169.9 144.9 

Maryport 186.9 182.9 169.9 144.9 

Morrisons 182.7 175.7 167.7 142.7 

Seaton 187.9 183.9 169.9 144.9 

Silloth Unknown Unknown 168.5 151.5 

Stainburn 192.9 189.9 169.9 144.9 

Wigton garage 1 Unknown Unknown 169.9 152.9 

Wigton garage 2 Unknown Unknown 169.9 144.9 

 

Page 51



5.5 Comparison of Table of Fares (Source: Private Hire and Taxi Monthly) 

5.6 The Private Hire and Taxi Monthly Trade publication (PHTM) updates the cost of a 
two mile hackney carriage taxi fare on Tariff 1 nationally every month for all 
councils. At January 2023 from the highest fare down Allerdale is currently at 
position 272 out of 350 of the fares.  

 5.7 Inflation – Retail Price Index (RPI) (Source: Office for National Statistics) 

 5.8 The RPI is the most well known measure of inflation in the UK. It monitors the  
 monthly change in prices of goods and services used by a typical UK household.  
 The measure of inflation adopted tracks the changing cost of a fixed basket of  
 goods and services over time. The basket is revised each year to reflect changes in 
 consumer spending habits. It includes a range of expenses from council tax to  
 washing powder, but broadly covers the following groups:  
 

 Food 

 Alcoholic drink (off sales) and tobacco 

 Clothing and footwear 

 Housing, fuel and light 

 Household goods and domestic services 

 Personal goods and services (health related) 

 Motoring expenditure, fares and other travel costs 

 Leisure goods and services 

 Catering and alcoholic drink (on sales) 

 Personal goods and services (non-health related) 
  
5.9 Information has been updated since the last report to Committee to include RPI 

price reports from April 2022. 
 

January 2018: 4.0% decreasing to 2.7% at December 2018 
January 2019: 2.5% decreasing to 2.2% at December 2019 
January 2020: 2.7% decreasing to 1.2% at December 2020 
January 2021: 1.4% increasing to 7.5% at December 2021 
January 2022: 7.8% 
February 2022: 8.2% 
March 2022:  9.0% 
April 2022:  11.1% 
May 2022:  11.7% 
June 2022:  11.8% 
July 2022:  12.3% 
August 2022: 12.3% 
September 2022 12.6% 
October 2022: 14.2% 
November 2022: 14.0% 
December 2022: 13.4% 
 

 
 
 

Page 52



5.10 National Minimum Wage (NMW) and National Living Wage (NLW) 
 
5.11 The minimum wage a worker should get depends upon their age and whether they 

are an apprentice. The NMW is the minimum pay per hour that almost all workers 
are entitled to. The NLW is higher than the NMW workers receive if they are over 
23. The NMW still applies for workers aged 22 and under but must be of school 
leaving age.  The rates change on 1 April every year. The rates are based on 
recommendations made by the Low Pay Commission (LPC) with the current rates 
based on recommendations made in October 2022. The LPC is an independent 
public body that advises the Government each year on the NMW and NLW.  

 
5.12 The rates are as follows: 
 

 23 and over 
 

21 to 22 
 

18 to 20 
 

Under 18 Apprentice 
 

April 21 - 
March 22 

£8.91 £8.36 £6.56 £4.62 £4.30 

April 22 – 
March 23 

£9.50 £9.18 £6.83 £4.81 £4.81 

April 23 – 
March 24 

£10.42 £10.18 £7.49 £5.28 £5.28 

 

6.0  Delivery arrangements 

 
6.0 Any variation approved by Executive will be advertised in accordance with 

legislation. Providing there are no objections, a new table of fares tariff card will be 
issued to each licensed hackney carriage vehicle. The proprietor will arrange for the 
meter to be re tariffed by a registered agent for the meter company. The meter will 
be tested at the next scheduled inspection of the vehicle.  

6.1 Contribution to Council Strategy Priorities, Outputs and Outcomes  

6.1.1 Thriving towns and villages – Residents and visitors require access to leisure and 
cultural facilities, shops and services and to visit the towns to attend festivals, 
events, cultural and other attractions. For many this access is via the hackney 
carriage trade. By considering the economic climate when determining the 
maximum fares the hackney trade can charge this will help support those 
businesses financially and in turn support the business or facilities being visited.   

6.1.2 Invest to grow – Existing businesses need to see Allerdale as an area where they 
can stay and grow. Growing the economy will in turn help support the range of 
services and facilities that people need and expect in their area. By making 
businesses financially viable will help create more work opportunities.   

6.2 Finance/Resource implications 

6.2.1 The council will incur advertising fees of approximately £1200.00 and the hackney 
carriage trade will incur a fee of approximately £25 plus VAT to re-tariff their meters 
if there is a variation to the table of fares.  

Page 53



6.3 Legal and governance implications  

6.3.1 The procedure to set the table of fares is governed by S.65(1) Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.  

6.3.2 The committee should consider the timescales involved in any amendments. 
Executive which will hear any proposal for amendment will be on 15 March. The 
advertisement could not be placed until the week after for 14 days. If there are 
comments in response to the advertisement the matter must be referred back. Due 
to vesting day on 1 April it will not be possible to re-consider. The taxi policies of the 
sovereign councils are already being reviewed with a view to amalgamating at the 
earliest possible opportunity. This will include the table of fares. 

6.4 Risk analysis 

 A scored and mitigated risk log 
 

Risk Consequence Controls required 
Mitigated 
score 

    

 

6.5 Increasing satisfaction and service 

6.5.1 Consultation and the implementation of the appropriate fares will involve community 
and trade engagement with the outcome supporting better local services giving both 
the trade and the public the confidence in the safety and protection given when 
working or travelling in hackney and private hire vehicles.  

6.6 Equality impacts 

6.6.1 Standards will be applied equally across the hackney licensed trade and for this 
reason it is not necessary to complete an impact assessment.  

6.7 Health and Safety impacts 

6.7.1 Affording to maintain standards will promote the health and safety of the trade and 
 the travelling public. 

6.8 Health, wellbeing and community safety impacts 

6.8.1 The focus of the standards is to protect children and vulnerable adults and the 
nature of them will by extension, protect all passengers and the people working in 
the trade. 

6.9 Environmental/sustainability impacts 

6.9.1 Not applicable 

6.10 Other significant implications 

6.10.1 No other significant implications. 
 

Page 54



Appendices attached to this report 

 

Appendix number Title of appendix 

1 Licensing Committee report dated 10/06/22 

2 Comparison of table of fares before and after last variation  

  

 

Background documents available 

 

Name of background document Where it is available 

Responses to original consultation Licensing Department 

 
 
Report author(s) and contact officer(s): 
Gillian Collinson  
Senior Specialist – Licensing and Compliance   
gillian.collinson@allerdale.gov.uk  
0303 123 1702  

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56



Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Licensing Committee – 10 June 2022 

 

Hackney Carriage Vehicles – Review of Table of Fares 

 
 
Portfolio holder   Councillor Colin Sharpe 
     Portfolio Holder for Legal and Finance 

Report from Gillian Collinson – Senior Specialist – Licensing and   
Compliance       

Wards affected   All Wards 

Is this a key decision  Yes  
 

 
 

1.0  The reason for the decision 

1.1 To consider the responses received from the hackney carriage trade to a 
consultation held regarding the review of the table of fares charged by a hackney 
carriage.  To also determine in light of current economic circumstances whether the 
table of fares charged by a hackney carriage shall be changed and determine the 
level.  

2.0  Recommendations 

2.1 To consider the information contained within paragraph 5.0 and decide whether to 
vary the table of fares and set the levels accordingly; or 

 
2.2 Retain the table of fares as existing. 

3.0  Background and Introduction 

3.1 The principal features of a hackney carriage are:  

 it can carry passengers for hire and reward;  

 it can be hailed by a prospective passenger; and  

 it can park on a rank to await the approach of passengers.  

 It must be driven by a driver who holds a hackney carriage driver’s licence.  
 
3.2 The Local Authority lays down conditions to regulate hackney carriage vehicles to 

ensure their safety, and for hackney carriage drivers, to assess the suitability and 
propriety of the individual.  

 
3.3 The Local Authority can also fix the rates or fares within the borough that hackney 

carriage proprietors can charge for their services. This can cover time, distance and 

Page 57



all other charges in connection with the hire of a vehicle and is known as the “table 
of fares”.  Once the fares are set, the hackney proprietor must have the meter in the 
vehicle calibrated to those fares and sealed to prevent tampering. This is the 
maximum that can be charged but a proprietor does have discretion to charge less 
than the meter price. The meter must always be used for each fare and display the 
current table of fares. There is also a separate tariff card which is displayed in the 
vehicle for the passengers’ benefit. 

 

3.4 The fares are fixed in accordance with Section 65(1) of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. If Members agree to vary the fares subject to 
confirmation from Executive (22 June 2022), this must be published in at least one 
newspaper circulating in the Borough, giving at least 14 days for objections. 
Following the publication of such Notice, the new table of fares will come into 
operation on 18 July 2022 (to be confirmed), provided no objections are received. If 
objections are received either from the trade or the public, the item is referred back 
for consideration. 

 

3.5 The last variation of the table of fares by this Authority was on 1 April 2018. Tariff 1 
was increased from £2.90 to £3.20, each subsequent 1/5 of a mile from £0.39 to 
£0.45 and each article of luggage to £0.20. 

 
3.6     The current table of fares for Hackney Carriage vehicles is as follows: 
 

Distance  
(Tariff 1) 

 

  If the distance does not exceed 1.6 kilometre (1 mile) for the 
whole distance  

 
320 pence 

If the distance exceeds 1.6 kilometre (1 mile) for the first kilometre 
(1 mile) 

 
320 pence 

For each subsequent 0.32 (1/5 of a mile) or uncompleted part 
thereof 

 
45pence 

Waiting Time  

  For each period of three minutes or uncompleted part thereof 45 pence 

Extra Charges  

  (Tariff 2)  
For hiring commenced between Midnight and 6am 

PLUS 50% 
OF TARIFF 1 

  (Tariff 3)  
All day on Bank and Public Holidays including Easter Sunday, 
Boxing Day and any Bank Holidays given in lieu of Boxing Day 
and to 4am on the day following those listed above. Hirings 
commenced between 6pm and Midnight on Christmas Eve and 
New Years Eve 

 
 
 
 

PLUS 75% 
OF TARIFF 1 

  (Tariff 4)  
Christmas Day and New Years Day 

PLUS 100% 
OF TARIFF 1 

  For each article of luggage conveyed outside the passenger 
compartment or the carriage for the whole distance 

 
20 pence 

For each person in excess of two  50 pence 

Fouling Charge £50.00 

The above rates of fare are applicable to: 
 
1. Journeys taken entirely within the Borough of Allerdale. 

Page 58



2. Journeys ending outside the Borough of Allerdale where no fare or rate is 
agreed in advance of such journeys between the hirer and the driver.  

 
4.0 Background Information 
  
4.1 The table of fares is reviewed on an annual basis. For Members’ information, the 

previous years’ amendments have been as follows: 
  

i 10/3/1999  increase from £1.60 to £1.80 for first mile  

 increase from 26 pence to 30 pence for each 
1/5 of a mile 

 increase in three minute waiting charge from 32 
to 35 pence. 

ii 23/2/2000  increase from £1.80 to £2.00 for first mile  

 increase from 30 pence to 32 pence for each 
1/5 of a mile (members originally recommended 
that Tariff 2 commence at 11pm. However this 
was amended to midnight at full Council on 12 
January 2000). 

iii 01/4/2002  increase from £2.00 to £2.20 for first mile 

 increase from 32 pence to 36 pence for each 
1/5 of a mile 

 increase in three minute waiting charge from 35 
to 36 pence 

 fouling charge increased from £25 to £50. 
iv      01/4/2003      Licensing Committee recommended an increase 

but was not accepted by Full Council. The tariff 
remained unchanged. 

v 01/4/2004  Only Tariff 3 amended to include between 
6.00pm and Midnight on Christmas Eve and 
New Years Eve. 

vi 01/4/2005   Increase of Tariff 1 from £2.20 to £2.40 for first 
mile. 

vii 01/4/2006  No change. 
viii 01/4/2007     Increase of Tariff 1 from £2.40 to £2.60 for first 

mile 

 For each person in excess of two from 25p to 
50p. 

ix 01/4/2008  No change. 
x 01/4/2009  Tariff 3 extended to 4am on days following bank 

and public holidays. 
xi 01/6/2010    Tariff 1 and 3 amended. 
xii 01/04/2011  No change 
xiii 01/04/2012  No change 
xiv 01/04/2013  No change 
xv 01/04/2014  No change 
xvi 
xvii 

01/04/2015 
01/04/2016 

 No change 

 No change 
      

Page 59



xviii 
xix 

01/04/2017 
01/04/2018 

 No change 

 As paragraph 3.5 
    

5.0  Content  

 
5.1 Consultation and responses from the trade 

5.2 The table of fares review usually takes place on an annual basis but there was no 
review in 2019, 2020 or 2021. A consultation with the hackney carriage trade took 
place between 19 April 2022 and 13 May 2022. Within that time, 13 responses were 
received. They are attached as appendices to this report at A-M. 

5.3 Fuel Price Report (Source: AA) 

5.4 For Members’ information, extracts from the Fuel Price Report are in the table 
below. The reports are published on a monthly basis and shows the UK average 
price across garages and supermarkets for diesel and super unleaded per litre. The 
information extracted illustrates the changes in price since the last variation of the 
table of fares in April 2018 and in particular the increases in the last four months.   

Garages and 
Supermarkets 

Diesel (pence) Super unleaded (pence) 

April 2018 124.2 131.3 

April 2019  132.0 137.3 

April 2020 115.6 125.9 

April 2021 129.1 138.5 

December 2021 149.6 155 

January 2022 149 157.5 

February 2022 151.6 160.1 

March 2022 173.8 174.4 

April 2022 175.9 175.8 

 

5.5 Comparison of Table of Fares (Source: Private Hire and Taxi Monthly) 

5.6 The Private Hire and Taxi Monthly Trade publication (PHTM) updates the cost of a 
two mile hackney carriage taxi fare on Tariff 1 nationally every month for all 
councils. For comparison purposes, the list of fares as at May 2022 is attached as 
Appendix N.  In the document the red upwards arrow indicates an increase and 
specifies the amount. The grey circle indicates no change. Tariff 1 at Allerdale is 
currently £3.20 for the first mile and multiplied by £0.45 for each 1/5th of a mile, 
which totals £5.45 for 2 miles. Allerdale is currently at position 292 out of 355 of the 
fares. The six entries at the bottom of the table show as zero as those councils 
don’t impose a compulsory fare and hackneys can negotiate their own individual 
fare. 

 

 

Page 60



 5.7 Inflation – Retail Price Index (RPI) (Source: Office for National Statistics) 

 5.8 The RPI is the most well known measure of inflation in the UK. It monitors the  
 monthly change in prices of goods and services used by a typical UK household.  
 The measure of inflation adopted tracks the changing cost of a fixed basket of  
 goods and services over time. The basket is revised each year to reflect changes in 
 consumer spending habits. It includes a range of expenses from council tax to  
 washing powder, but broadly covers the following groups:  
 

 Food 

 Alcoholic drink (off sales) and tobacco 

 Clothing and footwear 

 Housing, fuel and light 

 Household goods and domestic services 

 Personal goods and services (health related) 

 Motoring expenditure, fares and other travel costs 

 Leisure goods and services 

 Catering and alcoholic drink (on sales) 

 Personal goods and services (non-health related) 
  
5.9 From the published figures, the percentage rate of inflation since the last variation in 
  the table of fares is reproduced as follows: 
 

January 2018: 4.0% decreasing to 2.7% at December 2018 
January 2019: 2.5% decreasing to 2.2% at December 2019 
January 2020: 2.7% decreasing to 1.2% at December 2020 
January 2021: 1.4% increasing to 7.5% at December 2021 
January 2022: 7.8% 
February 2022: 8.2% 
March 2022:  9.0% 
 

5.10 National Minimum Wage (NMW) and National Living Wage (NLW) 
 
5.11 The minimum wage a worker should get depends upon their age and whether they 

are an apprentice. The NMW is the minimum pay per hour that almost all workers 
are entitled to. The NLW is higher than the NMW workers receive if they are over 
23. The NMW still applies for workers aged 22 and under but must be of school 
leaving age.  The rates change on 1 April every year. The rates are based on 
recommendations made by the Low Pay Commission (LPC) with the current rates 
based on recommendations made in October 2021. The LPC is an independent 
public body that advises the Government each year on the NMW and NLW.  

 
5.12 The rates since the last variation in the table of fares are as follows: 

Rates before 1 April 2021 

Before 1 April 2021 the National Living Wage was for those aged 25 and over. 
 
 
 

Page 61



 25 and over 21 to 24 18 to 20 Under 18 Apprentice 

April 2020 
to March 
2021 

£8.72 £8.20 £6.45 £4.55 £4.15 

April 2019 
to March 
2020 

£8.21 £7.70 £6.15 £4.35 £3.90 

April 2018 
to March 
2019 

£7.83 £7.38 £5.90 £4.20 £3.70 

 
 

 23 and over 
 

21 to 22 
 

18 to 20 
 

Under 18 Apprentice 
 

April 2021 
to March 
2022 

£8.91 £8.36 £6.56 £4.62 £4.30 

April 2022 £9.50 £9.18 £6.83 £4.81 £4.81 

 

6.0  Delivery arrangements 

 
6.0 Any variation approved by Executive will be advertised in accordance with 

legislation. Providing there are no objections, a new table of fares tariff card will be 
issued to each licensed hackney carriage vehicle. The proprietor will arrange for the 
meter to be re tariffed by a registered agent for the meter company. The meter will 
be tested at the next scheduled inspection of the vehicle.  

6.1 Contribution to Council Strategy Priorities, Outputs and Outcomes  

6.1.1 Thriving towns and villages – Residents and visitors require access to leisure and 
cultural facilities, shops and services and to visit the towns to attend festivals, 
events, cultural and other attractions. For many this access is via the hackney 
carriage trade. By considering the economic climate when determining the 
maximum fares the hackney trade can charge this will help support those 
businesses financially and in turn support the business or facilities being visited.   

6.1.2 Invest to grow – Existing businesses need to see Allerdale as an area where they 
can stay and grow. Growing the economy will in turn help support the range of 
services and facilities that people need and expect in their area. By making 
businesses financially viable will help create more work opportunities.   

6.2 Finance/Resource implications 

6.2.1 The council will incur advertising fees which are within budget and the hackney 
carriage trade will incur a fee of approximately £25 plus VAT to re-tariff their meters 
if there is a variation to the table of fares. 

Page 62



6.3 Legal and governance implications  

6.3.1 The procedure to set the table of fares is governed by S.65(1) Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.   

6.4 Risk analysis 

 A scored and mitigated risk log 
 

Risk Consequence Controls required 
Mitigated 
score 

    

 

6.5 Increasing satisfaction and service 

6.5.1 Consultation and the implementation of the appropriate fares will involve community 
and trade engagement with the outcome supporting better local services giving both 
the trade and the public the confidence in the safety and protection given when 
working or travelling in hackney and private hire vehicles.  

6.6 Equality impacts 

6.6.1 Standards will be applied equally across the hackney licensed trade and for this 
reason it is not necessary to complete an impact assessment.  

6.7 Health and Safety impacts 

6.7.1 Affording to maintain standards will promote the health and safety of the trade and 
 the travelling public. 

6.8 Health, wellbeing and community safety impacts 

6.8.1 The focus of the standards is to protect children and vulnerable adults and the 
nature of them will by extension, protect all passengers and the people working in 
the trade. 

6.9 Environmental/sustainability impacts 

6.9.1 Not applicable 

6.10 Other significant implications 

6.10.1 No other significant implications. 
 

Appendices attached to this report 

 

Appendix number Title of appendix 

A-M Responses to consultation 

N Comparison of table of fares (PHTM) 

 

Background documents available 

 

Page 63



Name of background document Where it is available 

  

 
 
Report author(s) and contact officer(s): 
Gillian Collinson  
Senior Specialist – Licensing and Compliance   
gillian.collinson@allerdale.gov.uk  
0303 123 1702  

Page 64



Table of Fares
Taxi (hackney carriage) table of fares (update 1 April 2018)

DISTANCE (Tariff 1) Tariff Current
Proposed  
increase

If the distance does not exceed 1.6 kilometre (1 mile) for the whole distance 320 pence £3.20 £3.50

If the distance exceeds 1.6 kilometre (1 mile) for the first kilometre (1 mile) 320 pence £3.20 £3.50

For each subsequent 0.32 (1/5th of a mile) or uncompleted part thereof 45 pence £0.45 £0.50

WAITING TIME
For each period of three minutes or uncompleted part thereof 45 pence £0.45 £0.50

EXTRA CHARGES
(Tariff 2) For hiring commenced between Midnight and 6.00 a.m. PLUS 50% OF 

TARIFF 1
£4.80 £5.30

Proposed rewording: (Tariff 2) For hiring commenced between 11.00 p.m. and 6.00 a.m. PLUS 50% OF 
TARIFF 1

£5.30

(Tariff 3) All day on Bank and Public Holidays including Easter Sunday, Boxing Day and any 
Bank Holidays given in lieu of Boxing Day and to 4.00 a.m. on the day following those listed 
above. Hirings commenced between 6.00 p.m. and Midnight on Christmas Eve and New 
Years Eve

PLUS 75% OF 
TARIFF 1

£5.60 £6.20

Proposed rewording: (Tariff 3) All day on Bank and Public Holidays including Easter Sunday, 
Boxing Day and any Bank Holidays given in lieu of Boxing Day and to 6.00 a.m. on the day 
following those listed above. Hirings commenced between 6.00 p.m. and Midnight on 
Christmas Eve and New Years Eve

PLUS 75% OF 
TARIFF 1

£6.20

(Tariff 4) Christmas Day and New Years Day PLUS 100% OF 
TARIFF 1

£6.40 £7.00

For each article of luggage conveyed outside the passenger compartment or the carriage for 
the whole distance

20 pence £0.20 £0.20

For each person in excess of two 50 pence £0.50 £0.55

Fouling Charge £50 £50.00 £100.00

The above rates of fare are applicable to:
1. Journeys taken entirely within the Borough of Allerdale.
2. Journeys ending outside the Borough of Allerdale where no fare or rate is agreed in 
advance of such journeys between the hirer and the driver.

None

P
age 65



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 66



Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Procedure at Licensing Meetings 
 

Once the Chair has moved the exemption paragraph the press and public will 
leave the room   
 
Procedure 
 
Step 1 
 
The Chair will ask those present to introduce themselves and explain the 
procedure to be followed. 
 
Step 2 
 
The Chair will ask the author of the report (or their substitute) to outline the 
proposal and the background to the case.  Their role will be to provide factual 
information to the committee. 
 
The Chair invites members of the committee to ask the presenting officer any 
questions they may have about the application.  
 
Step 3 
 
The Chair invites Councillor(s) attending under Procedural Rule 4.31.2 to 
come forward and present objection(s). 
 

 Each Councillor is permitted 10 minutes 

 The Chair asks if Members of the Committee have any questions to 
ask the Councillor(s) 

 The Councillor(s) return to the public area. 
 
Step 4 
 
The Chair invites applicant or the applicant’s representative to make 
representations.  The applicant/applicants representative is permitted 10 
minutes 
 

 The Chair asks if any member of the committee/officers present have 
any questions to ask the applicant/applicants representative 

 
Step 5 
 
The Chair invites any party making representations (including any other 
persons who have been given permission to participate) (if any) to present 
their comment(s). 
 

 The Chair asked if any member of the committee have any questions 
to ask any party making representations  

Page 67

Agenda Annex



 
Step 6 
 
The Chair offers the applicant/applicants representative the final opportunity 
to address the Committee.  The applicant/applicants representative is 
permitted 10 minutes. 
 
Step 7 
 
The Chair will ask the parties to withdraw so that the committee can consider 
its determination.  In considering its determination, the Committee may seek 
advice from its Legal Adviser. 
 
Step 8 
 
The parties will be re-called and informed of the Committees decision. 
 

 Applicant to be advised that the decision will be confirmed in writing 
within 7 days. 

 

 Applicant to be advised of any appeal procedure. 
 
All parties will leave swiftly prior to the next case. 

Page 68



Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Procedure at Licensing Meetings  
 

Policy Formulation 
 
 
Procedure 
 
Step 1 
 
The Chair will explain the procedure to be followed. 
 
Step 2 
 
The Chair will ask the presenting officer (or their substitute) to outline the 
proposal and the background to the case.  Their role will be to provide factual 
information to the committee. 
 
The Chair invites members of the committee to ask the presenting officer any 
questions they may have about the policy.  
 
Step 3 
 
The Chair invites Councillor(s) attending under Procedural Rule 4.31.2 to 
come forward and make representations 
 

 Each Councillor is permitted 10 minutes 

 The Chair asks if Members of the Committee have any questions to 
ask the Councillor(s) 

 The Councillor(s) return to the public area. 
 
Step 4 
 
The Chair invites any party making representations (if any) to present their 
comment(s). 
 

 The Chair to ask if any member of the committee has any questions to 
ask any party making representations.  

 
Step 5 
 
The committee will consider the policy.  In considering the policy, the 
Committee may seek advice from its Legal Adviser. 
 

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 70


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	Minutes , 30/11/2022 Licensing Panel
	Minutes , 27/06/2022 Licensing Regulatory Panel
	Minutes , 01/09/2022 Licensing Regulatory Panel
	Minutes , 25/10/2022 Licensing Regulatory Panel
	Minutes , 15/11/2022 Licensing Regulatory Panel
	Minutes , 06/01/2023 Licensing Regulatory Panel

	5 Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Vehicle Age Policy
	Appendix 1 for Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Vehicle Age Policy

	6 Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Livery Conditions
	7 Hackney Carriage Table of Fares Review
	Appendix 1 for Hackney Carriage Table of Fares Review
	Appendix 2 for Hackney Carriage Table of Fares Review

	 Licensing Committee Procedures
	Licensing  Comm Procedures Policy


